
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee East 
Wednesday, 14th April, 2010 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564470 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Colling (Chairman), A Green, A Boyce, Mrs D Collins, Miss C Edwards, 
R Frankel, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Ms J Hedges, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, 
J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 14 April 2010 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 18) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting of 24 March 2010. 

 
 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 

 
 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

 
  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 

and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 19 - 38) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 14 April 2010 
 

3 

consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
Nil Nil Nil 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 14 April 2010 
 

4 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: Wednesday, 24 March 

2010 
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.35 - 8.40 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

M Colling (Chairman), A Green, Mrs D Collins, R Frankel, P Gode, 
Mrs A Grigg, Ms J Hedges, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, J Philip, 
B Rolfe, D Stallan, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

  
  
Apologies: A Boyce and Miss C Edwards 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant) and G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer) 

  
 
 

105. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

106. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

107. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
The Chairman requested nominations from the Sub Committee for the role of Vice 
Chairman. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That Councillor J Philip be elected Vice Chairman for the duration of the 
meeting. 

 
108. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2010 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Area Planning Subcommittee East  Wednesday, 24 March 2010 

2 

109. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor P Gode 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of being a 
member of Ongar Town Council. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
not prejudicial and that he would stay in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0015/10 Ongar War Memorial Hospital, Fyfield Road, Ongar 
 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Stallan 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of one of the 
objectors being a fellow school governor. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and that he would stay in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0015/10 Ongar War Memorial Hospital, Fyfield Road, Ongar 
 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs J Hedges 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
member of Epping Town Council. The Councillor had determined that her interests 
were not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0149/10 208-212 High Street, Epping; and 
 

• EPF/0150/10 208-212 High Street, Epping 
 
(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs J 
Whitehouse declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue 
of being a member of the Epping Society who had made an objection to the original 
application concerning this site. The Councillor had determined that her interests 
were not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0149/10 208-212 High Street, Epping; and 
 

• EPF/0150/10 208-212 High Street, Epping 
 

110. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

111. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the planning applications numbered 1 - 4 be determined as set out in the 
schedule attached to these minutes. 

 
112. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 

Page 8



Area Planning Subcommittee East  Wednesday, 24 March 2010 

3 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2156/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Nine Ashes Farm  

Rookery Road  
Ongar  
Essex  
CM4 
 

PARISH: High Ongar 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from agricultural use to B1 and B8 use. 
(Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
This item was deferred to allow additional highway consultation. 
 
 

Minute Item 111

Page 5Page 11



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0015/10 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Ongar War Memorial Hospital  

Fyfield Road  
Ongar  
Essex 
CM5 0AL 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Shelley 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing hospital (C2) and erection of new 3 
storey primary care centre with ancillary car parking, to 
provide modern health service facilities to local community 
(D1). Accommodation to include space for 2 local GP 
practices, consultant and treatment rooms, PCT community 
accommodation, dental suite, relevant support/service 
spaces, staff facilities including office space. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Members requested that when details of condition 18 are received, this be brought to Committee. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 The parking area shown on the approved plan 2492/00-002 Rev F shall be provided 
prior to the first occupation of the development and shall be retained free of 
obstruction for the parking of staff, patients and visitors vehicles.  The parking shall 
be provided strictly in accordance with the detail shown on the approved plan, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 

4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
  

Page 6Page 12



 
5 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 

works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 
 
Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the 
completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
upon completion for approval. 
 
Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 
investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out. 
 
Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
first occupation of the completed development. 
 

6 No development or demolition of any kind shall take place until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant 
and approved by the local planning authority.   
 

7 Notwithstanding the information provided in the Flood Risk Assessment, proper to 
the commencement of the development hereby approved details of the maintenance 
and management of the proposed surface water storage tank and surface water 
package pumping station shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval in writing.  The development shall proceed in accordance with the 
approved details and the drainage systems shall be maintained in accordance with 
the manufacturer’s recommendations.    
 

8 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  
 
The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 
 
The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 7Page 13



The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

9 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 
 
The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 
 
The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 
  
The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 
 

10 A methodology statement detailing the methodology for the preservation of materials 
from the existing building and their incorporation into the construction of the building 
hereby approved shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in 
writing.  The development shall proceed in accordance with the approved details.   
 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of 
adequate turning and off loading facilities for delivery /construction vehicles together 
with an adequate parking area for those employed in developing the site and wheel 
washing facilities within the site shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
for approval in writing. The agreed facilities shall be provided on site prior to the 
commencement of the development and shall be retained for the duration of the 
construction of the development. 
 

12 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of 
temporary road barriers to be installed around the grass verges in the vicinity of the 
site shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  The 
barriers shall be installed prior to the commencement of the development and shall 
be retained for the duration of the construction of the development. 
 

13 No development hereby approved shall take place until measures to enable the 
provision of highway improvements to the local area, necessitated by this 
development, are secured.   
 

14 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of bollards 
to be provided along Fyfield Road shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
for approval in writing.  Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby 
approved, the bollards shall be provided in accordance with the approved details.   
  

15 Notwithstanding the detail shown on the approved drawing 2492/00-002 Rev F, 
further detailed design of the access arrangements and footway to include 
appropriate radius kerbs, clear to ground visibility splays of 90m by 4.5m by 90m, 
footway widening, signage and markings shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval in writing.  The development shall proceed in accordance with 
the approved details.   

Page 8Page 14



16 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the 
location and design of secured covered storage for powered two wheelers and 
bicycles shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the 
facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details.   
 

17 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of a 
pedestrian crossing, appropriate to the speed of traffic, on Fyfield Road shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  Prior to the first 
occupation of the development hereby approved, the pedestrian crossing shall be 
provided. 
 

18 Within six calendar months of the date of this planning permission a Travel Plan to 
include a Car Parking Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval in writing.  The car park shall be operated in accordance with 
the agreed details thereafter.   
 

19 The vertical panels at either end of the stairwell which align with the landings within 
the stairwell shall be obscure glazed prior to the first use of the building and retained 
as such. 
 

20 All aspects of the design of the building which relate to its function as a war 
memorial (i.e. the use of colour changing glass and large signage on the main stairs, 
the provision of the roll of honour, space for wreaths, reference within the building to 
the Drum and Monkey club, the use of the cast name panel from the original hospital 
building, the cataloguing of the existing remembrance boards and artifacts taken 
from the original building, representations of regimental badges within the building, 
the provision of hard landscaping to facilitate an appropriate setting for 
Remembrance Day Services and the potential for additional wreaths to be 
accommodated), shall be completed within 3 months of the first use of the building 
and shall be retained thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
 
 

Page 9Page 15



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0149/10 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 208 - 212 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AQ 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of time limit on EPF/0039/06 for the demolition of 
buildings and redevelopment of site to provide a mixed use 
development comprising A1 retail and 8 residential units. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions and Subject to a Section 
106 Agreement.) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

 
1 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 No development or preliminary groundworks of any kind shall take place until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved by the local planning authority. This condition will only be 
considered to be discharged when the planning authority has received and approved 
an archaeological report and/or publication of all the required archaeological works. 
 

5 Details of a screen to surround the first floor terrace area shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the 
development.  The screen shall be erected in accordance with this agreed scheme 
and be permanently retained thereafter. 
 

6 Details of a wall to be erected to the boundary of number 2 Hemnall Street shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and the boundary wall 
shall be erected in accordance with these approved plans and permanently retained 
thereafter. 
 

Page 10Page 16



 
7 The rating level of noise (as defined by BS4142:1997) emitted from any air 

conditioning units, condensor units and other mechanical plant shall not exceed 
5dB(A) above the prevailing background noise level.  The measurement position 
and assessment shall be made according to BS4142:1997.  
 

8 The servicing of the retail unit hereby approved shall not take place between the 
hours of 06:30 and 18:00 every day and the unit shall be serviced from the High 
Street entrance only and not from the rear Hemnall Street side of the premises. 
 

9 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

10 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
  

11 The retail unit hereby approved shall be let as one unit and not sub-divided without 
the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

12 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 21/03/07 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

13 Prior to the commencement of the development, and notwithstanding the approved 
plans, details of a bin store shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA).  The bin store shall be provided in accordance with these 
details and be permanently retained as such thereafter, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

  
 
And subject to the developer first entering into a legal agreement under Section 106, within 12 
months, to secure the sum of £15,000 to be used by the Council towards the enhancement of the 
Epping Conservation Area. 
 

Page 11Page 17



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No:   EPF/0150/10 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 208 - 212 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AQ 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of limit on CAC/EPF/0060/06 for conservation area 
consent for demolition of 208-212 High street and buildings to 
rear. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission ((With Conditions and Subject to a 
Section 106 Agreement.)) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

 
And subject to the applicant entering into a legal agreement under section 106, within 12 months, 
to ensure that demolition does not take place until a contract has been entered into for the 
construction of the replacement building. 
 
  

Page 12Page 18



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 
Date 14 April 2010 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 
 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1 EPF/2285/09 143 High Road, 
North Weald, 

Epping CM16 6EA 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

21 

2 EPF/2399/09 Former Milrite Engineering Site, 
151-156 London Road, 

Stanford Rivers, 
Ongar CM5 9QF 

Grant Permission 
(Subject to Legal 
Agreement) 

25 

3 EPF/2400/09 Former Millrite Engineering Site, 
151-156 London Road,  

Stanford Rivers,  
Ongar CM5 9QF 

Refuse Permission 33 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2285/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 143 High Road 

North Weald  
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6EA 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Guiseppe Tarallo 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retrospective application for the erection of first floor side 
extension and part single storey/part two storey rear 
extension. (Amended application to include pitched roof over 
previously approved flat roof on EPF/0477/09) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank wall shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and 
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7metres above the floor of the room in which the 
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension shall match 
those of the existing building. Furthermore, within 3 months from the date of this 
decision the visible western flank wall of the single storey extension shall be 
rendered to match the main dwelling, and retained as such thereafter. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for a variation to the previously approved EPF/0477/09 for a first floor 
side extension and a part single storey/part two storey rear extension. The proposed amendment 
is for the installation of a pitched roof over the previously approved single storey flat roofed rear 
addition. The single storey rear extension element of the scheme is 3.1m in width by 3.4m in depth 
and the proposed pitched roof reaches a maximum height of around 3.5m. The extension is 
currently under construction and this proposal is therefore a retrospective application for the 
retention of this pitched roof. 
 

Page 21



Description of Site: 
 
Two storey semi-detached property located on the northern side of High Road, North Weald. The 
dwelling is set back some 25m from the edge of the highway. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1485/78 - Single storey extensions (garage, dining room, kitchen, breakfast room, laundry 
and W.C. – approved 01/12/78 
EPF/0903/84 - First floor side extension – refused 03/09/84 (appeal dismissed 19/08/85) 
EPF/0477/09 - Erection of first floor side extension and part single storey/part two storey rear 
extension – approved/conditions 20/05/09 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
DBE10 – Residential Extensions 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – Objects to this application on the basis that the pitched roof is visually 
inappropriately intrusive on the neighbouring property due to its bulk and mass. The Council are 
also concerned that this is a retrospective application. 
 
141 HIGH ROAD – Object due to loss of light, the bulky appearance, and due to problems with the 
guttering and maintenance. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main aspects of this two storey side and part two storey/part single storey rear extension have 
been approved and have been constructed according to the original planning consent. As such the 
only issue to consider here relates to the design of, and potential impact resulting from, the 
installation of the pitched roof over the previously approved flat roofed single storey rear aspect. 
 
The previously approved scheme included a flat roofed single storey rear extension built to the 
shared boundary with No. 141 High Road. This was 3.1m in width, 3.4m in depth and reached a 
height of 2.9m. The floor area of the single storey extension has remained as approved, however 
the installation of the pitched roof has resulted in the extension having an eaves height of 2.8m 
and a maximum height of 3.5m (which was measured on site by a Planning Officer). 
 
The attached neighbour, No. 141, has a single storey rear addition that extends across the entire 
rear of the property and reaches a depth of 3.4m. This addition has a hip ended pitched roof with 
an eaves height of 2.6m and an overall height of 3.5m. Therefore whilst the eaves height of the 
proposed rear extension is slightly above that of the neighbours the overall height is identical and 
the rear wall does not extend beyond that of the attached neighbour. The only significant 
difference between the new pitched roof single storey addition on No. 143 High Road and that of 
No. 141 High Road is that it has a gable end adjacent to the neighbour rather than a hip end. 
During construction this was left as breeze block and therefore is somewhat unsightly, however 
once rendered this would improve the overall visual appearance. Whilst there is a requirement to 
improve this elevation under condition 3 of EPF/0477/09, which requires the external materials to 
match the existing dwelling, this could be further strengthened by an additional condition. 
 
The pitched roof is located below the first floor windows of the dwellings and as such would not 
impact on the light to these windows. Furthermore, whilst visible if looking directly at the extension, 
the gable end would be below eye level and therefore would not detrimentally impact on the 

Page 22



outlook from the neighbour’s first floor window. As the pitched roof does not extend beyond the 
rear wall of the neighbour’s single storey rear addition, and is roughly of the same height, the new 
pitched roof would cause no further loss of light to the neighbour’s rear garden than that which 
occurs from their rear addition, and the gable ended roof would not be so visually offensive to be 
constituted as ‘detrimental to visual amenity’. 
 
Concerns have been raised by the occupiers of No. 141 with regards to the difficulty in maintaining 
their gutters as a result of the pitched roof. This is not a material planning consideration and as 
such holds no weight in this assessment. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above, the proposed pitched roof is considered a minor and acceptable alteration to 
the previously approved scheme, and it does not cause a detrimental impact on the amenities of 
the neighbouring residents. As such the proposed retrospective alteration to EPF/0477/09 is 
considered acceptable and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

85.3m 190

154a 158

2 1

9 5

96152

1 3 7

1 3 5

1 7 0

182

154

1 3 5 a

1 5

Surgery

1 2 5

146

11

1

1 6 1

1 4 9

1 3 4

196

206

208

122

14
6

1 4 4

1 4 0

188

1 5 8

186

112

15
6

178

S h e l
t e r

E l S ub S ta

QUE E
NS  R O

A D

Q U E E N S  R O A D

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/2285/09 
Site Name: 143 High Road, North Weald  

CM16 6EA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 24



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2399/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Millrite Engineering Site 

151-156 London Road  
Stanford Rivers  
Ongar  
Essex 
CM5 9QF 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Berden Enterprises Ltd 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Scheme 2: Replacement of existing 2 storey dwelling and 
redevelopment of remainder of site to provide 3 additional 2 
storey dwellings and associated garaging and amenity space 
(giving a total of 4 new houses). 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 
 
Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the 
completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
upon completion for approval. 
 
Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 
investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out. 
 
Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
first occupation of the completed development. 
 

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 

Page 25



submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  
 
The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 
 
The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

4 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

5 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

6 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the Tree Protection Plan set out in 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment undertaken by M Moya Associates ref 200206-
PD-02, dated February 2010.  
 

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B and E shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 The following windows shall be obscure glazed in fixed (non-openable) frames to a 
minimum height of 1.7m as measured from the finished floor level of the rooms to 
which they serve and be retained as such thereafter.  As identified on Drawing No. 
NH:09:096:10A they are:- 
- Type 'F' Dwelling:  Windows on the forward most south-east facing elevation 
- Type 'E' Dwelling (Handed):  Windows on the north-west facing elevation 
 

 
And subject to a Unilateral Undertaking signed by the applicant for £100,000 towards the 
provision of off-site Affordable Housing. 
 

Page 26



This application is before this Committee since it is an application contrary to the provisions of the 
approved Development Plan, and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule 
A (a) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
It is proposed to redevelop land comprising a disused engineering works and detached house 
together with a large grassed area to provide 4 two-storey detached houses. 
 
The houses would comprise 2 types situated on the developed north-eastern part of the site and 
be accessed by the existing access point.  Each house would have 5 bedrooms with the master 
bedroom and a playroom proposed in the roof space.  There would be the opportunity for the 
designated playroom to be used as a 6th bedroom.  One house would be sited midway along the 
northeastern boundary with a detached double garage situated adjacent to the site access.  Its 
garden would continue to the southeast boundary.  A private drive would separate that house from 
the remaining 3, which would have attached double garages.  Their private gardens would be 
provided on the existing open part of the site. 
 
The houses would be of traditional design with tall gabled and part hipped roofs.  They would be 
finished in a mix of facing brick and black painted timber boarding with plain tiles to the roofs. 
 
The houses would have maximum ridge heights of 9.5m while those of the garages would be 
5.2m.  The total volume of all the proposed buildings would be some 3000m2 while their ground 
area would be 432m2. 
 
The applicant offers a contribution of £100,000 towards the provision of off-site affordable housing.  
The application includes a unilateral undertaking under which the applicant has stated payment 
would be made on completion of the development. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located on the southeast side of London Road (the A113), Stanford Rivers, 
between the Woodman PH and former White Bear PH.  It is within the Metropolitan Green Belt but 
is not within a conservation area. 
 
The White Bear PH has been converted to a number of dwellings: White Bear House and White 
Bear Mews.  The Woodman PH is set adjacent to London Road while White Bear House and 
Mews are situated off an access road southeast of London Road at significantly lower level such 
that they are not clearly visible from the main road.  Those buildings are Grade II listed. 
 
The site itself is a disused engineering works and detached house accessed off the same road 
that provides access to White Bear House and Mews. It is an irregular shaped site, approximately 
rectangular in shape.  It is largely screened from view of London Road by a hedgerow on the 
highway verge, a leylandii hedge adjacent to the access to the site and by its level being 
significantly lower than that of the carriageway. 
 
The buildings on site are a mix of single and two-storey structures with a maximum ridge height of 
7.2m situated on the north-eastern part of the site that enclose a concrete surfaced yard area.  
They are substantial and permanent structures that have a total volume of some 2300m3 covering 
a ground area of 545m2. 
 
The south-western half of the site is an open grassed area with some trees.  The site levels drop 
approximately 2m from northwest to southeast. 
 

Page 27



The south-eastern boundary of the site is enclosed by close board fencing, beyond which is an 
open field that falls away from the site.  Views to the east beyond the adjacent field are of open 
countryside.  The field is used for a mix of agricultural and recreational purposes, the recreational 
activity being clay pigeon shooting. 
 
The north-western site boundary is enclosed by a close board fencing with hedgerow on highway 
land between the site boundary and London Road. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
Various but only one application is relevant to this proposal: 
 
EPF/0713/09 Retaining store/forge to front and converting to two bedroom single storey unit, 

retaining spray and bending building and conversion to a two bedroom bungalow, 
retaining two, two storey workshops and office building and converting to a four 
bedroom house.  Approved following the completion of a S.106 agreement requiring 
the payment of a contribution of £100,000 to the provision of social housing upon 
completion of the development.  (Development not commenced) 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3-5 and ST1 Sustainable development policies 
GB2A  Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A  Conspicuous Development 
GB15A  Replacement Dwellings 
HC12  Development Affecting the Setting of Listed Buildings 
H2A  Previously Developed Land 
H3A  Housing Density 
H4A  Dwelling Mix 
H5A-7A Policy relating to the provision for affordable housing 
E4A  Protection of Employment Sites 
E4B  Alternative Uses for Employment Sites 
DBE1, 2, 4, 6, 8 & -9 Policy relating to design and impact of development on amenity 
LL10  Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
LL11  Landscaping Schemes 
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6  Vehicle Parking 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
The occupants of 4 neighbouring properties were consulted and a site notice was erected.  The 
following comments were received; 
 
WHITE BEAR HOUSE, 149 LONDON ROAD: The proposal is supported 
 
THE WOODMAN PH, 155 LONDON ROAD: No objection.  Any additional living accommodation 
would be of benefit to the locality. 
 
STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL: No Objection in principle (subject to conditions).  This is 
more acceptable [than Scheme 2] for the new dwellings to be grouped alongside the complex of 
buildings on adjoining White Bear cottage, the rear garden to the dwellings to the proposed 

Page 28



dwellings, protects the openness of the green belt alongside the Woodman PH, although the 
dwellings have a greater mass than the existing street scene and are of three storey. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The District Council accepted the principle of the loss of this site for employment purposes and the 
sustainability of the location for residential development when it granted planning permission for 
the conversion of the existing buildings to provide a total of four dwellings including the existing 
house, Ref EPF/0713/09.  Similarly, the District Council has accepted the principle of dealing with 
the issue of the need for affordable housing by way of a financial contribution towards making such 
provision off site.  The main issues to consider when assessing the planning merits of this 
proposal are therefore whether the development is acceptable in Green Belt terms and its effect 
on the setting of the adjacent listed buildings. 
 
The development is not appropriate in the Green Belt and therefore by definition harmful.  It would 
result in a significantly higher form of development, at least 2m higher, and an increase in built 
volume of 700m3, 30% of that existing, although this would be achieved on a 122m2 (23%) smaller 
ground area.  When seen from London Road the roofs of the new houses would be apparent 
while, due to the drop in land levels beyond the site to the southeast the development would 
appear prominent when seen from the open countryside.  However, that impact is confined to the 
previously developed part of the site and to some limited extent mitigated by the higher level of the 
highway beyond the site.  Nevertheless, the development would have a materially greater impact 
on the open character and appearance of the Green Belt than the existing development.  
Accordingly, the development can only be allowed where very special circumstances that outweigh 
the identified harm exist. 
 
The design of the new development would represent a considerable improvement over the 
appearance of the existing buildings and by restricting the built area to the previously developed 
part of the site it accords with the updated guidance for housing development set out in PPS3.  
The restriction of the built up area to that already developed serves to protect a key part of the 
established character of the immediate locality.  It also safeguards the setting of the adjacent listed 
buildings especially the Woodman PH which is set away from neighbouring buildings in an open 
setting. 
 
Applicants Case for Very Special Circumstances for allowing inappropriate development in the 
Green Belt 
 
The applicants identify the recent grant of planning permission Ref. EPF/0713/09 for the 
conversion of the existing buildings to dwellinghouses and the ability to extend the existing house 
under permitted development rights as contributing to a case of very special circumstances for 
allowing the development.  They also draw attention to a lessened potential activity on the site and 
less ground coverage, an increase in openness between buildings, significant improvements in the 
appearance of the site, the maintenance of the existing large open part of the site and the 
opportunity to restrict permitted development rights for the new development. 
 
Comments on Applicants Case 
 
1. Planning permission EPF/0713/09 was for the conversion of existing buildings and is 

theoretically capable of being implemented.  However, the applicant advises that development 
is not viable due to the difficulties associated with implementing the conversion.  To some 
extent this casts doubt on whether planning permission should have been given for the 
conversion of the existing buildings.  That is because adopted policy in respect of proposals for 
reusing redundant buildings in the Green Belt requires the buildings concerned to be 
demonstrably capable of conversion without major or complete construction.  Policies GB8A 
and GB9A are relevant.  This together with the simple fact that the permission was for the 

Page 29



conversion of buildings rather than their redevelopment weakens the weight that should be 
given to the permission in determining this proposal.  What is clear from that permission 
however, is the District Council considered the existing buildings worthy of retention, mainly 
because of a persuasive submitted structural report with the conversion application that 
deemed the buildings capable of conversion and therefore helping to justify conversion to 
housing in the Green Belt and meeting a policy requirement that they were worthy of retention. 

 
2. There is some difficulty attaching weight to the ability to exercise permitted development rights 

where such rights have not been exercised and may well not be.  It would be odd to give 
weight to hypothetical buildings when assessing whether very special circumstances exist.  
Accordingly, there is also some difficulty in attaching weight to the District Council’s opportunity 
to restrict permitted development rights for a proposed development.  These arguments put 
forward by the applicant are no more than material considerations. 

 
3. The reduction in ground coverage and increased space between buildings is to some degree 

offset by the additional height and volume of the development proposed.  Although the 
applicant states there is no policy requirement to compare volume when assessing the merits 
of proposals to redevelop commercial sites for housing, that is to miss the point of such an 
assessment.  The point is to deal with the comparative impact of the existing and proposed 
developments on the openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt.  To do so requires an 
examination of all aspects of a development’s impact on openness and it is appropriate to 
include a comparison of volume and height as well as the ground area and location of 
development. 

 
4. The issue of design would appear to be the matter around which the question of very special 

circumstances should be settled in this case.  Although the District Council has previously 
taken the view that the existing buildings are worthy of retention, it is appropriate to consider 
whether any improvement to the character and appearance of the locality that would be 
achieved by the proposal is so great that, having regard to all other material considerations, 
the development would, on balance be beneficial to the locality.  In this case the improvement 
to the character and appearance of the immediate locality would be considerable but it must be 
recognised that this can only be achieved by causing some harm to the openness of the Green 
Belt. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
In Green Belt terms, since it is not unusual for a proposed development to result in an 
improvement to the appearance of the site and the locality, that benefit cannot be considered to 
amount to very special circumstances to outweigh the in principle harm to the openness of the 
Green Belt. Officer’s recommendation to grant planning permission, in this case, relies on the 
benefit in design terms and to the visual enhancement of the locality compared with the existing 
buildings on the site, despite it being contrary to the Council’s Green Belt policies. Therefore, 
should the Area Committee agree to grant planning permission, it will have to be referred on to 
District Development Control Committee for the final decision. The views of the Parish Council 
have also aided in the balance of issues in this case just in favour of a more positive 
recommendation. 
  
This is an extremely finely balanced case where the harm caused is, just, outweighed by the 
merits of the proposal in design terms. On that basis planning permission could be given subject to 
the completion of an agreement under S.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to 
secure a financial contribution towards the provision of affordable housing in the District.  The 
provision of £100,000 is offered by the developer on the basis that it would be paid following 
completion of the development.  This is identical to the arrangement entered into in respect of the 
permission to convert the existing buildings. 
 

Page 30



Members will be aware the developer is offering an enhanced contribution in connection with an 
alternative scheme for the site under application EPF/2400/09 reported elsewhere on this agenda.  
They may therefore wish to give consideration to the appropriate level of contribution.  Members 
may also wish to give consideration as to whether it would be more appropriate to secure payment 
of any sum in advance of the completion to the development.  The Council’s solicitor advises there 
is a small risk that the completion of the development, if approved, could be delayed in order to 
delay or even avoid payment and therefore recommends that payment be made within 3 months of 
the commencement of the development and not, as proposed by the applicant, on completion of 
the development. 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

46.3m

4 6 . 6 m

41.1m

39.9m

50.0m

W h
i t e  
B e a

r  M
e w s

White Bear House

White Bear Cottage

The Woodman
(PH)

Works
153

Wells

Well

Iss

Pa t h  ( u m)

FB

(u m)

P a t h

P at h ( um )

A  
1 1
3

A  
1 1
3

L O
N D
O N
 R O

A D

A  1
1 3

A  1
1 3

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 & 3 
Application Number: EPF/2399/09 & EPF/2400/09 
Site Name: Former Millrite Engineering Site, 151-156 

London Road, Stanford Rivers, CM5 9QF 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 32



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2400/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Millrite Engineering Site  

151 -156 London Road  
Stanford Rivers  
Ongar  
Essex 
CM5 9QF 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Berden Enterprises Ltd  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Scheme 1: Replacement of existing 2 storey dwelling and 
redevelopment of remainder of site to provide 3 additional 2 
storey dwellings and associated garaging and amenity space 
(giving a total of 4 new houses) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposal amounts to conspicuous and inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt that would have an excessive adverse impact upon the openness, rural 
character and visual amenities of the Green Belt for which no very special 
circumstances exist.  Accordingly, it is contrary to policies CP2, GB2A and GB7A of 
the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

2 By reason of its intrusion into an undeveloped gap between the previously 
developed part of the site and the Grade II listed Woodman PH, the development 
causes harm to the established character and the setting of that listed building 
contrary to policies CP2, DBE1, DBE4 and HC12 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application that is considered by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development as appropriate to be presented for a Committee 
decision (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (k) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Although Officers are opposed to this development and could have dealt with it under their 
delegated powers, it is presented to Members in order that they may have the opportunity of 
comparing the proposal to an alternative proposal for the same site on this agenda which officers, 
on balance, support (application ref EPF/2399/09). 
 
In this case it is proposed to redevelop land comprising a disused engineering works and detached 
house together with a large grassed area to provide 4 two-storey detached houses with a double 
garage each. 

Page 33



 
The houses would comprise 4 types spread across the entire site and be accessed by the existing 
access point, which would be controlled by gates.  Each house would have 5 bedrooms.  One 
house would be sited midway along the northeastern boundary with a detached double garage 
situated adjacent to the site access.  Its garden would continue to the southeast boundary.  A 
private drive would continue through the middle of the site with the remaining 3 arranged either 
side. 
 
The houses would be of traditional design with tall hipped, gabled and part hipped roofs.  They 
would be finished in a mix of facing brick, painted render and black painted timber boarding with 
plain tiles to the roofs. 
 
The houses would have maximum ridge heights varying between 7.8 and 8.8m while those of the 
garages would be 5.2m.  The total volume of all the proposed buildings would be some 3000m2 
while their ground area would be 567m2. 
 
The applicant offers a contribution of £150,000 towards the provision of off-site affordable housing.  
The application includes a unilateral undertaking under which payment would be made on 
completion of the development. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located on the southeast side of London Road (the A113), Stanford Rivers, 
between the Woodman PH and former White Bear PH.  It is within the Metropolitan Green Belt but 
is not within a conservation area. 
 
The White Bear PH has been converted to a number of dwellings: White Bear House and White 
Bear Mews.  The Woodman PH is set adjacent to London Road while White Bear House and 
Mews are situated off an access road southeast of London Road at significantly lower level such 
that they are not clearly visible from the main road.  Those buildings are Grade II listed. 
 
The site itself is a disused engineering works and detached house accessed off the same road 
that provides access to White Bear House and Mews. It is an irregular shaped site, approximately 
rectangular in shape.  It is largely screened from view of London Road by a hedgerow on the 
highway verge, a leylandii hedge adjacent to the access to the site and by its level being 
significantly lower than that of the carriageway. 
 
The buildings on site are a mix of single and two-storey structures with a maximum ridge height of 
7.2m situated on the north-eastern part of the site that enclose a concrete surfaced yard area.  
They are substantial and permanent structures that have a total volume of some 2300m3 covering 
a ground area of 545m2. 
 
The south-western half of the site is an open grassed area with some trees.  The site levels drop 
approximately 2m from northwest to southeast. 
 
The south-eastern boundary of the site is enclosed by close board fencing, beyond which is an 
open field that falls away from the site.  Views to the east beyond the adjacent field are of open 
countryside.  The field is used for a mix of agricultural and recreational purposes, the recreational 
activity being clay pigeon shooting. 
 
The north-western site boundary is enclosed by a close board fencing with hedgerow on highway 
land between the site boundary and London Road. 
 
 
 

Page 34



Relevant History: 
 
Various but only one application is relevant to this proposal: 
 
EPF/0713/09 Retaining store/forge to front and converting to two bedroom single storey unit, 

retaining spray and bending building and conversion to a two bedroom bungalow, 
retaining two, two storey workshops and office building and converting to a four 
bedroom house.  Approved following the completion of a S.106 agreement requiring 
the payment of a contribution of £100,000 to the provision of social housing upon 
completion of the development.  (Development not commenced) 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3-5 and ST1 Sustainable development policies 
GB2A  Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A  Conspicuous Development 
GB15A  Replacement Dwellings 
HC12  Development Affecting the Setting of Listed Buildings 
H2A  Previously Developed Land 
H3A  Housing Density 
H4A  Dwelling Mix 
H5A-7A Policy relating to the provision for affordable housing 
E4A  Protection of Employment Sites 
E4B  Alternative Uses for Employment Sites 
DBE1, 2, 4, 6, 8 & -9 Policy relating to design and impact of development on amenity 
LL10  Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
LL11  Landscaping Schemes 
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6  Vehicle Parking 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
The occupants of 4 neighbouring properties were consulted and a site notice was erected.  The 
following comments were received; 
 
WHITE BEAR HOUSE, 149 LONDON ROAD: The proposal is supported 
 
THE WOODMAN PH, 155 LONDON ROAD: No objection.  Any additional living accommodation 
would be of benefit to the locality. 
 
STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL: Strong Objection – The Parish Council are mindful that 
both schemes are contrary to the Green Belt Policy and not appropriate in principle unless ‘special 
circumstances’ can be demonstrated.  An obvious ‘special circumstance’ is that new development 
would tidy up the site an advantage over the refurbished buildings that there is a current planning 
approval.  Scheme is considered a total infill in a green belt site contrary to the openness in a 
green belt situation, and not acceptable. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The District Council accepted the principle of the loss of this site for employment purposes and the 
sustainability of the location for residential development when it granted planning permission for 
the conversion of the existing buildings to provide a total of four dwellings including the existing 

Page 35



house, Ref EPF/0713/09.  Similarly, the District Council has accepted the principle of dealing with 
the issue of the need for affordable housing by way of a financial contribution towards making such 
provision off site.  The main issues to consider when assessing the planning merits of this 
proposal are therefore whether the development is acceptable in Green Belt terms and its effect 
on the setting of the adjacent listed buildings.  As to the matter of provision for affordable housing, 
the enhanced contribution offered when compared to the approved development is a reflection of 
the increased viability of the proposal. 
 
The development is not appropriate in the Green Belt and therefore by definition harmful.  It would 
result in a significantly higher form of development, at least 2m higher, and an increase in built 
volume of 700m3, 30% of that existing, although this would be achieved on a 22m2 (0.4%) greater 
ground area.  When seen from London Road the roofs of the new houses would be apparent 
while, due to the drop in land levels beyond the site to the southeast the development would 
appear prominent when seen from the open countryside. That impact would be spread across the 
entire site although to some limited extent would be mitigated by the higher level of the highway 
beyond the site.  The development would have a materially greater impact on the open character 
and appearance of the Green Belt than the existing development.  Accordingly, the development 
can only be allowed where very special circumstances that outweigh the identified harm exist. 
 
The design of the new development would represent a considerable improvement over the 
appearance of the existing buildings.  However, since the development would not be restricted to 
the built area to the previously developed part of the site it is at odds with the updated guidance for 
housing development set out in PPS3.  By failing to restrict the proposed built development to that 
part of the site already developed it amounts to a departure form a key element of the established 
character of the immediate locality.  Moreover, it intrudes particularly into the setting of the 
adjacent listed Woodman PH, which is presently set away from neighbouring buildings in an open 
setting.  Since the essential quality of the setting of the Woodman PH is its openness, the 
introduction of substantial development into that setting can only be harmful to it. 
 
The applicants identify the recent grant of planning permission Ref. EPF/0713/09 for the 
conversion of the existing buildings to dwellinghouses and the ability to extend the existing house 
under permitted development rights as contributing to a case of very special circumstances for 
allowing the development.  They also draw attention to a lessened potential activity on the site and 
similar ground coverage, an increase in openness between buildings, significant improvements in 
the appearance of the site and the opportunity to restrict permitted development rights for the new 
development.  The applicant has submitted no analysis of the setting of the Woodman PH and 
relies on the traditional design and sympathetic choice of external materials alone to, in the 
applicant’s view, respect the setting of the adjacent listed buildings. 
 
Planning permission EPF/0713/09 was for the conversion of existing buildings and is theoretically 
capable of being implemented.  However, the applicant advises that development is not viable due 
to the difficulties associated with implementing the conversion.  To some extent this casts doubt on 
whether planning permission should have been given for the conversion of the existing buildings.  
That is because adopted policy in respect of proposals for reusing redundant buildings in the 
Green Belt requires the buildings concerned to be demonstrably capable of conversion without 
major or complete construction.  Policies GB8A and GB9A are relevant.  This together with the 
simple fact that the permission was for the conversion of buildings rather than their redevelopment 
weakens the weight that should be given to the permission.  What is clear from that permission 
however, is the District Council considers the existing buildings worthy of retention, since the grant 
of permission for the conversion of redundant buildings in the Green Belt to housing depends on 
meeting a policy requirement that they are worthy of retention. 
 
There is some difficulty attaching weight to the ability to exercise permitted development rights 
where such rights have not been exercised and may well not be.  It would be odd to give weight to 
hypothetical buildings when assessing whether very special circumstances exist.  Accordingly, 

Page 36



there is also some difficulty in attaching weight to the District Council’s opportunity to restrict 
permitted development rights for a proposed development.  Those arguments put forward by the 
applicant are no more than material considerations. 
 
The increased space between buildings is offset by the additional height, volume and spread of 
the development proposed.  Although the applicant states there is no policy requirement to 
compare volume when assessing the merits of proposals to redevelop commercial sites for 
housing, that is to miss the point of such an assessment.  The point is to deal with the comparative 
impact of the existing and proposed developments on the openness and visual amenities of the 
Green Belt.  To do so requires an examination of all aspects of a development’s impact on 
openness and it is appropriate to include a comparison of volume, height spread and ground area 
as well as the proposed spacing of buildings on the site. 
 
It is appropriate to consider whether any improvement to the character and appearance of the 
locality that would be achieved by the proposal is so great that, having regard to all other material 
considerations, the development would, on balance be beneficial to the locality.  In this case a key 
component of the character and appearance of the locality is the visual gap between the 
developed part of the site and the Woodman PH.  The development would result in the loss of that 
gap and the intrusion of development into the setting of The Woodman PH that can only be 
harmful.  When taken in isolation from their context within the Green Belt and the adjacent listed 
buildings there is a case that the proposed houses would have a significantly better appearance 
than the existing buildings.  However, an assessment of the planning merits of a development 
must have regard to the context of the development and this proposal fails to respect its context. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposal amounts to conspicuous and inappropriate development in the Green Belt that would 
have an excessive adverse impact upon the openness, rural character and visual amenities of the 
Green Belt for which no very special circumstances exist.  Accordingly it is contrary to policies 
CP2, GB2A and GB7A of the Local Plan and Alterations.  Furthermore, by reason of its intrusion 
into an undeveloped gap between the previously developed part of the site and the Grade II listed 
Woodman PH, the development causes harm to the established character of the locality and the 
setting of that listed building contrary to policies CP2, DBE1, DBE4 and HC12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	3 MINUTES
	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	East 14 April 2010


